
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU

Crime and Disorder 
Scrutiny Committee

Members of the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee of Gravesham Borough Council are 
summoned to attend a meeting to be held at the  on Thursday, 13 October 2016 at 7.30 pm 
when the business specified in the following agenda is proposed to be transacted.

S Kilkie
Assistant Director (Communities)

Agenda

Part A
Items likely to be considered in Public

1. Apologies 

2. Minutes (Pages 3 - 8)

3. Declarations of Interests 

4. To consider whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or any items in Part B in public 

5. Responding to Hate Crime (Pages 9 - 20)

6. Legislative Update (Pages 21 - 24)

7. Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel Update (Pages 25 - 32)

8. Exclusion 
To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

Public Document Pack



Part B 
Items likely to be considered in private

Members

Cllr John Knight (Chair)
Cllr Sara Langdale (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: Karen Hurdle
David Hurley
Samir Jassal
Gurdip Ram Bungar
Rob Halpin
Les Howes
Lyn Milner
Lauren Sullivan

Substitutes: To be notified



1

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday, 16 February 2016 7.30 pm

Present:

Cllr John Knight (Chair)  
Cllr Sara Langdale (Vice-Chair)     

Cllrs: Karen Hurdle
Steve Thompson
Rob Halpin
Les Howes 
Lyn Milner
Lauren Sullivan

Simon Hookway Service Manager (Economic Development)
Kath Donald Strategic Manager (Community Safety) 
Sean Steer Operational Manager (CSU) 
Adam Green Locality Manager CRI (West Kent Recovery Service) 
Ben Clarke Committee & Scrutiny Assistant 

5. Apologies 

Apologies of absences were received from Cllr Gurdip Ram Bungar, Inspector Chris Carter 
and Chief Inspector Tracey Quiller.  

6. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 18 February 2015 were signed by the Chair. 

7. Declarations of Interest 

Cllr Sara Langdale informed the Committee her daughter was a detention officer in 
Maidstone and could come in contact with the Kent Police force. 

Cllr John Knight informed the Committee that he is a volunteer for the victim support service. 

8. To consider whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or any items in Part B in public 

No items to be considered in private. 

9. Tackling Substance Misuse 

The Strategic Manager (Community Safety) presented to the Committee a report outlining 
the links between substance misuse (alcohol and drugs) and violence including domestic 
abuse as well as the statistics in Gravesham compared to other districts. 

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee 16.02.2016

2

The Strategic Manager (Community Safety) explained to the Committee that drug/alcohol 
related crime is important as it can involve domestic abuse and other crimes like shoplifting, 
robberies and other acquisitive crimes are often committed to finance drug habits. 

The Strategic Manager (Community Safety) highlighted the following points to the 
Committee: 

 The rate of drug related offences per 1000 is lower than the county average
 The Community Safety Partnership compares the statistics to other ‘similar groups’ 

e.g. Thurrock which have similar demographics to Gravesham and Dartford and 
Gravesham also have a lower than average rate of drug offences compared to these 
areas

 On Page 10 of the agenda it shows the local alcohol profiles of districts and their 
crime related to alcohol which as shown is a much bigger problem in Gravesham 
than other districts  

 Page 12 shows details of hospital admissions for psychoactive substance and 
alcohol use but this does not include A&E attendances

 The age range with the highest figure of hospital admissions related to the use of 
psychoactive substances is 45-64 years old whereas for  alcohol-related admissions 
it is 25-44 years old 

 It tends to be town centre wards and deprived areas of the borough where drug-
related activity is most prevalent 

 The organisation for youths dealing with addiction called ‘Addaction’ has shown on 
page 13 that the number of young people starting new treatment has reduced 
however it is still a higher figure than seen in Dartford 

 There are still concerns with legal highs – sightings of discarded canisters suggest 
that they are being increasingly used but the nature and extent of this problem is 
currently unknown. 

The Locality Manager CRI (West Kent Recovery Service) introduced himself to the 
Committee and outlined the following points about his work to the Committee: 

 The MEAM (making Every Adult Matter) project group is an off-shoot of the CSP 
Drug and Alcohol Action Group.  MEAM spans many different teams ranging from 
alcohol treatment to mental health services all of which work together to identify the 
specific needs of complex drug and alcohol misuse clients 

 The MEAM Board  meets on a quarterly basis, is co-chaired by The Locality Manager 
and Inspector Chris Carter (Kent Police) and an Operational Group meets more 
frequently to deliver tailored support to identified clients

 A £1000 grant of emergency funds was given to the service by GBC’s CSU
 The biggest users of legal highs found are older people who have had previous 

addiction issues with opiates or alcohol; the service can offer medical treatments for 
opiate users but unfortunately there is none for legal highs – it works on the basis of 
what the legal drug they were using most resembles to a controlled substance and 
treat for that  

 Page 14 details a case study of a woman who the MEAM process helped bringing 
her onto a treatment and recovery programme and by acquiring housing for her 
outside of the Borough (ensuring that contact with past associates was minimised).  
Previously this client had been placing considerable demands on a range of 
agencies; once on the MEAM process her contact with the Police had fallen 
significantly and to date improvements are being sustained. 

Page 4



Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee 16.02.2016

3

A Member commented on the impressiveness of the multi-agency group but wanted 
clarification on whether or nor other organisations were involved like Porchlight or more 
specifically with the prison system like Rapt and Sanctuary. 

The Locality Manager CRI (West Kent Recovery Service) clarified that the service actually 
hosts clinical surgeries for Porchlight and Sanctuary as well as working alongside those on 
parole to try and help them fit back into society. The GBC work closely with G-Safe and Kent 
Police to Strategic Manager (Community Safety) advised that Porchlight and City Praise 
through a Sanctuary Project can actually refer cases to GBC through the MEAM process. 

Following several more questions from Members the Locality Manager CRI (West Kent 
Recovery Service) and the Strategic Manager (Community Safety) explained that:

 The people being admitted to hospitals statistics and the amount of reported offences 
are so vastly different because of cases that come to the attention of the police; the 
primary focus is dealers and tackling supply. Some possession is actually 
confiscated rather than reported as the amount of drugs found could be exceedingly 
small   

 It is not actually an offence to be intoxicated on the drugs themselves  
 A lot of the drug stock is coming from places like Abbey Wood and Thanet; dealers 

are actually travelling to Gravesend due to its prime location 
 The statistics for hospital admission due to controlled substances is also included in 

the agenda 
 Through the MEAM process there is still always a lead agency on each case which 

would deal with coordinating most of the work; this process increased communication 
between the agencies and stop fighting between groups for cases benefitting the 
victims/patients  

 The graph on Page 10 is not broken down into days of crime but the results were that 
there were much higher figures of offences on Friday and Saturday nights 

 In the next report the measurement of resources will be included and where they 
should be distributed especially on big occasions such as Christmas time

 The IOM group help persistent offenders and administer drug tests weekly to try and 
maintain a user being clean 

The Operational Manager (Community Safety) advised the Committee on the various 
enforcement powers the Police have and what has been carried out in the Borough:
 

 GBC work closely with G-Safe and Kent Police to try and carry out the enforcement 
powers in the Borough effectively 

 New dispersals powers have been acquire which makes it easier to move people on 
form designated areas within 24 hours

 There have been approximately six dispersal areas in the Town Centre 
 Police and PCSO’s frequently confiscate and empty alcohol from groups of people in 

the Alcohol Control Zones; one man had alcohol confiscated 28 time in one day and 
was given a Criminal Behaviour Order totalling 160 days in prison with conditions that 
included engaging with CRI on release 

 New legislation has been introduced (The Psychoactive Substances Act 2016) giving 
police greater powers to tackle the trade in psychoactive substances.  It is due to 
come into force on 6 April 2016 

Page 5



Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee 16.02.2016

4

 Some changes have been made to the area to design out crime. Kent Police carried 
out raids at places like the Canal Basin where thousands of cannabis plants were 
seized 

 A vehicle was stopped and searched and had large amount of heroin seized leading 
to an  arrest (details, if available, to be sent to Cllr Langdale on whether or not the car 
was tracked into the Borough or it was random)      

The Operational Manager (Community Safety) informed Members that the G-Safe scheme 
deals with a lot of offenders and share intelligence with the CRI to try and prevent people 
from using psychoactive and controlled substances. G-Safe has also been able to ban 
people who have shoplifted from shopping areas which mean they cannot finance their 
addiction as easily.

The Locality Manager informed that Kent Police and CRI had raided many shops in 
Gravesend such as Skunkworks and confiscated legal highs such.

The Operational Manager (Community Safety) assured the Committee that lots of work is 
being undertaken with young people at schools by other agencies to make them aware of 
the dangers of these drugs.

Members noted the content of the report. 

10. Strategic Assessment and Partnership Priorities 

The Strategic Manager (Community Safety) presented to the Committee a report on the 
Strategic Assessment and Partnership priorities highlighting the below key points regarding 
crime:

 The completion of the strategic assessment annually is a legal requirement 
established by the provisions of the Crime & Disorder Act 1998

 Page 76 of the agenda outlines all of the key findings of the report 
 Total recorded crime fell year ending 30 September 2015 by 5.9% from 7701 to 7243 

offenses 
 Violent Crime is still a national issue but Gravesham is the only district in Kent to 

achieve a reduction in violent crime with a fall of 1.5% compared to the other districts 
who had a rise of 1.9% to 15.1% 

 Road safety is a big issue which is discussed in schools and GBC support the 
‘Licence to Kill’ drama group which show young people the dangers of driving 
recklessly through a video and real life experiences 

 A Member commented on the fact that there was no mention of cyber-crime within the 
strategy which is a prominent and dangerous crime at the moment. 

The Strategic Manager (Community Safety) assured Members that GBC are aware of cyber-
crime and it will be included in the broad strategy for next year to try and tackle the various 
things that can occur online including radicalisation and child exploitation etc. It is also in the 
Kent Police Crime Strategy. 

Following several more questions form Members the Operational and Strategic Managers 
(Community Safety) highlighted to the Committee that:
 

Page 6



Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee 16.02.2016

5

 Will ask Natalie Brown the Troubled Families Manger to get back to Cllr Milner on 
information about child prostitution 

 There was a meeting in October 2015 at the Northfleet School for Girls that was for 
women/girls only to talk about the problems they face including radicalisation, FGM 
and abuse etc 

A Member commented on the lack of statistics for hate crime within the report and reference 
that a lot of crime could be hate related and needed to be report on. 

Members agreed to note the findings in the report and endorsed the proposed priorities for 
the new CSP Community Safety Plan 2016-19 subject to the amendment:

 Hate crime will be added as a strategic objective into the strategy for next year 

Close of meeting 

The meeting ended at 9:15pm. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Classification:
Part 1 – Public

Key Decision:
No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee

Date: 13 October 2016

Reporting Officer: Strategic Manager (Community Safety)

Subject: Strengthening Communities – Encouraging the Reporting of 
Hate Crime

Purpose and summary of the report:
This report informs Members of work that is taking place locally to raise awareness and 
encourage the reporting of hate crime as part of a wider programme contributing to 
community cohesion.  It also ensures that Members are fully apprised of Central 
Government’s new Action Plan for tackling hate crime as a national priority and how the 
Council is operating proactively to fulfil its community safety responsibilities by supporting our 
diverse population.

Recommendations:
Members of the Committee are asked to:

i) Consider and comment upon the content of the report;
ii) Offer their suggestions for future activity that should be considered by the 

Community Safety Partnership to raise awareness and educate against hate 
crime.

1. Introduction

1.1 At the last Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee held in February 2016, Members 
considered the proposed priorities that had been identified by the Dartford and 
Gravesham Community Safety Partnership (CSP) for inclusion in its new three-year 
Community Safety Strategy.  The Committee agreed that hate crime should be 
included in the Strategy; officers reported the Committee’s recommendation to the 
CSP and tackling hate crime was subsequently incorporated into the Strategy within 
its key objective, ‘Protecting and Strengthening Communities’.

1.2 This report provides Members with details of work that has been taking place to 
ensure that hate crime remains high on our agenda and describes a range of 
activities that are being developed that both support national directives and local 
priorities.

2. The National Position

2.1 On 26 July 2016, the Home Office published the Government’s new Action Plan for 
tackling hate crime following an increase in reports of hate incidents in the days after 
the EU Referendum.  The Plan applies to England and Wales, introduces further 
steps following the Government’s previous Plan, Challenge It, Report It, Stop It and 

Page 9 Agenda Item 5



2

sets out a range of actions to be delivered between now and 2020.  Specific changes 
include:

 The publication, for the first time, on the extent of hate crime as recorded in 
the Crime Survey for England and Wales;

 An improvement in police recording of hate crime – police forces will need to 
capture data on recorded hate crime under all 5 monitored strands and publish 
that data as part of Official Statistics;

 The funding of a number of projects with the voluntary sector working with 
victims of hate crime through the Ministry of Justice’s Victim and Witness Fund; 
and,

 Amended legislation to provide for enhanced sentencing in a wider range of 
crimes including, for the first time, a victim’s transgender identity as an 
aggravating factor.

2.2 The Government’s Action Plan aims to tackle hate crime from beginning to end – 
from understanding the drivers of hate crime to dealing with its causes and providing 
improved support to victims.  Key actions fall within 2 broad areas:

i) Preventing hate crime

 Teacher training to ensure greater opportunity for pupils to voice concerns;
 The CPS has produced a resource pack on hate crime for use by schools;
 Funding for a new programme in London and the West Midlands to inspire 

young people to become community members engaging in social action;
 The Government will assess the level of anti-Muslim, anti-Semitic, 

homophobic bullying in school and support projects to reduce it;
 A fund has been created to provide in-kind support to community groups 

focused on tackling hatred (to be secured through a bidding process).

ii) Responding to hate crime in our communities

The aim is to reduce hate crime incidents and the focus is on a number of 
settings that have emerged as high risk environments for hate crime including 
public transport, the night-time economy (NTE) and the Internet.

 The Home office will fund 3 new projects to explore innovative ways in 
which communities can respond to hate crime;

 Resources will be developed to specifically meet the needs of those 
experiencing hate crime because of sexual orientation and 
transgender identity;

 A national database of symbols, slogans and flags that may be illegal 
because of the organisations that use them will be developed;

 Best practice will be identified and disseminated regarding the tackling 
of disability hate crime;

 £2.4m scheme has been launched to improve security at vulnerable 
faith institutions (the Gurdwara in Gravesend is submitting an 
application to enhance CCTV);

 Specific work with British Transport Police and public transport 
companies will be carried out to encourage reporting of hate crime 
experienced by passengers and/or staff;

Page 10



3

 There will be a review of current guidance for taxi licensing and 
training to ensure that taxi drivers are better-equipped to identify and 
report hate crime occurring in the NTE;

 Body worn cameras are being explored further as a means of 
evidencing hate crime and taking action against perpetrators;

 Drinkaware (national project that aims to reduce drunken ASB 
amongst 18-24 year olds) is to ensure that its training incorporates 
hate crime;

 Significant steps to try to address hate crime occurring online 
including: changes to Police recording systems which must now flag 
whether a hate crime has an online element; following a public 
consultation the Director of Public Prosecutions will publish guidance 
on the prosecution of cases involving hate communications sent via 
social media;

 Improving awareness across the board and increasing opportunities 
for third party reporting. 

2.3 Local Councils are recognised as key partners in tackling hate crime.  As one of the 
main service providers in local areas, Councils come into contact with vast numbers 
of local people on a daily basis and are generally occupy premises that are 
accessible to all.  For a large number of victims, reporting to the Police remains an 
option that they feel unable to take and reporting to their Local Authority or external 
partner agency services that are based within Council offices is an alternative that we 
should promote: it may make the difference between a victim receiving appropriate 
help and advice or remaining silent.

3. Encouraging the Reporting of Hate Crime as a Local Priority

3.1 What is Hate Crime?

3.1.1 Hate crime means any crimes that are directed at a person because of that person’s:

 disability;
 race or ethnicity;
 religion or belief;
 sexual orientation; or,
 transgender identity.

3.1.2 It can be committed against a person or their property.  Hate crime takes many forms 
and could include verbal abuse, physical assault, harassment or damage to property.  
If a person believes that they are being bullied because of any of the characteristics 
mentioned, this is also dealt with as a hate crime or incident when reported.  It is also 
important to note that hate crimes or incidents must be recorded based on the 
perception of the victim or the reporting person.  A breakdown of the different types of 
hate crime and incidents and current legislation are provided in Appendix 2 to this 
report.

3.2 Why should raising awareness of hate crime be a local priority?

3.2.1 Gravesham has a very strong history of celebrating the great diversity of its local 
population and recognises the important role that local people themselves have to 
play in building communities that are safe, where people from different cultural 
backgrounds, with different beliefs and lifestyles, can live alongside each other with 
mutual respect for each other and their local environment.  The CSP and the Council 

Page 11



4

recognise the importance of being proactive in addressing any issues that are 
damaging to community cohesion and partner agencies are firmly committed to 
working collaboratively to demonstrate that hate crime will not be tolerated.

3.2.2 Despite a decrease in hate crime reported via the national Crime Survey year on year 
between 2012-13 to 2014-15, the very significant difference between police figures 
and those recorded in the Crime Survey are indicative of considerable under-
reporting (less than a quarter of incidents appear to be being reported to the police 
nationally and there is no reason to believe that Gravesham’s position would be any 
different).  It is important to remember that hate crime victims are more likely to suffer 
repeat victimisation, more likely to experience serious psychological impacts and less 
likely than victims of other crime to be satisfied with police response.  In future, 
recorded hate crime and incident figures for our area will be made available to 
Community Safety Units across the county as part of standard data packs that we 
receive on a monthly basis via Kent County Council.  This will make it much easier to 
understand the nature and extent of hate crime locally and help us to identify what 
further steps we can take both to encourage reporting and address any gaps in 
services available to victims.

3.2.3 It is important to make clear that this Hate Crime initiative is partly a response a 
nationwide acknowledgement that there needs to be more awareness of the impact 
on victims of all forms of hate crime and partly because partner agencies in our area 
are committed to ensuring that community cohesion remains strong.  This work is 
intended as a positive contribution to promoting tolerance and stability.  

4. Initial and Planned Activity

4.1 Whilst the Community Safety Unit (CSU) first began investigating what approach 
could be taken to addressing hate crime locally, it recognised that any activity would 
need to be delivered with a range of partner agencies.  Rather than establishing a 
new group to progress this, the Council’s Corporate Community Cohesion Group 
(CCG) was agreed as a natural forum for taking this work forward.  The CCG already 
includes representatives from most Council departments as well key external agency 
representatives from Kent Police, Kent Equality Cohesion Council and The Gr@nd 
Project.  The Group also meets bi-monthly and is well-placed to monitor progress and 
continue to build on the initial work that has been conducted.

4.2 Activities delivered and planned include:

i) Earlier this year, the CSU secured some external funding and three separate 
days of Home Office accredited training were provided to approximately 45 
staff from different Council departments and other local agencies on 
Ideologies (Violent and Non-Violent Extremism) and Far Right Extremism that 
was incredibly well-received;

ii) The CSU has ring-fenced some of our funding received through our Police 
and Crime Commissioner’s allocation for 2016-17 specifically to support our 
activities relating to hate crime.  A small amount of this funding has been used 
to organise a further two days of the training mentioned that will be delivered 
in October 2016 to another 30 Council officers;

iii) The production of publicity materials (leaflets, posters and a banner) to 
encourage reporting that will be launched during National Hate Crime 
Awareness (8th-15th October 2016) (a copy of the leaflet is provided as 
Appendix 3).  The intention is that these will be prominently displayed in 

Page 12



5

public-access areas during the week and Council-owned buildings/housing 
blocks;

iv) The CSU is currently sourcing a brief on-line training session (similar to 
Prevent On-line Training completed by staff and Members last year) that all 
staff and Members will be asked to complete to raise awareness of the 
different types of hate crime and how victims can be supported);

v) Information on hate crime and how to report will be included in all tenancy 
packs issued to new Council tenants;

vi) When possible, community events that are arranged (particularly those 
organised by Housing Services Tenants’ Participation Team), we will try to 
ensure that hate crime reporting and support for victims is actively promoted;

vii) Communications/Media colleagues are currently working to develop a social 
media graphic that can be used as an advert on Facebook to promote the 
details for reporting;

viii) Information will be included on our website on reporting hate crime (social 
media would include a link to the web page) with links to a range of agencies 
that will be able to provide appropriate advice and assistance;

ix) The seasonal ‘Community Safety Shop’ (early December) will be used as an 
opportunity to raise awareness of hate crime and encourage reporting;

x) Information relating to Home Office funding available to community groups, 
community interest companies and charities to deliver projects to address 
hate crime have been provided by the CSU to colleagues in other 
organisations that may be in a position to apply together with an offer to 
provide our support with the bidding process (Local Authorities are not able to 
apply directly for this funding);

xi) Discussions have taken place with the Kent Police Community Liaison Officer 
regarding the benefits of raising awareness amongst particularly vulnerable 
people who could be subjected to ‘mate crime’, that is, where offenders 
specifically target vulnerable elderly people or people with disabilities to 
‘befriend’ them in order to win their trust and confidence only to exploit them or 
their property.  The intention is to link this awareness-raising activity with 
sessions already arranged with the Kent County Council Community Warden 
Service that are being delivered to elderly people in sheltered housing 
schemes and in supported accommodation in respect of educating against 
financial scams as victimisation of this group is more prevalent.

5. Longer term objectives

5.1 The above is seen very much as a first step is developing a more proactive approach 
to dealing with hate crime and there will hopefully be opportunities to work 
collaboratively with many other local service providers to improve the assistance and 
advice available to victims.  Longer term objectives include:

 We will also be considering more closely the approaches contained within the 
Government’s Action Plan and hope to explore ways in which we can work 
cross-departmentally to identify further cost-effective and deliverable initiatives 
e.g. working with Licensing colleagues in respect of taxi licensing/awareness 

Page 13



6

raising for drivers and building relationships with local public transport 
providers;

 Exploring opportunities for joint working with organisations and agencies 
already engaging with young people e.g. KCC Youth Services, The Gr@nd 
Project, Gravesham’s Youth Council, to encourage discussion and debate 
about hate crime, its impact, how to seek advice or report incidents and 
encourage young people themselves to offer suggestions for activities that 
they feel would be beneficial and which they may be able to participate in 
delivering;

 Identify and try to engage with hard to reach groups to ensure that they are 
encouraged to report incidents and are aware of assistance available to them 
and in order that we can be clear on any barriers that exist that may have 
prevented reporting in order that we can try to address them;

 To take steps to encourage those who witness but are not the immediate 
target of hate crime to use third party reporting opportunities;

 Once Police recorded hate crime figures are routinely provided to the CSU, to 
build a better understanding of the nature and extent of hate crime locally 
(albeit with the caveat of under-reporting) in order that we can better target 
resources to those areas and sections of our community most in need of 
support.

6. Appendices

Appendix 1:  Implications

Appendix 2: Different types of hate crime and incidents

Appendix 3: Hate Crime Reporting Leaflet

Kath Donald
Strategic Manager, Community Safety Unit
29 September 2016

Page 14



7

APPENDIX 1

IMPLICATIONS                                                                                                             
Legal The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places a duty on Local Authorities to work 

with statutory partners to prevent crime and disorder in its area.  Hate crime 
is seen as both a national and local priority, the safety of people being of 
paramount importance.

Finance and 
Value for 
Money

The Community Safety Unit will be able to fund the activities described in this 
report by utilising some of the external funding provided through the 
Community Safety Fund allocated by the Police and Crime Commissioner’s 
Office in 2016-17 (£31,857 is the full allocation and we have earmarked 
£3,000 to kick-start this project).

Risk 
assessment

Failure to address hate crime not only fails its’ victims but also presents a risk 
to community cohesion and public confidence in the Council’s approach to 
equalities.
Screening for Equality ImpactsEquality 

Impact 
Assessment Question Answer Explanation

a. Does the decision being 
made or recommended 
through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse 
impact or discriminate 
against different groups in 
the community?

No. No – recommended work will 
benefit all members of the 
community and makes a 
positive contribution to 
equalities.

b. Does the decision being 
made or recommended 
through this paper make a 
positive contribution to 
promoting equality?

N/a

c.     What steps are you taking to 
mitigate, reduce, avoid or 
minimise the impacts 
identified above?

N/a

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they 
have given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being 
considered, as noted in the table above

Corporate 
Business 
Plan

The report has relevance to the Council’s strategic objective: Community 
Well-Being (Community Safety).

Crime and 
Disorder

Addressing hate crime is recognised as a priority within the CSP’s 
Community Safety Strategy 2016-19, within the CSU’s Corporate Business 
Plan and was agreed as an area for development by the Crime and Disorder 
Scrutiny Committee in February 2016.

Page 15



8

APPENDIX 2
What is Hate Crime?

Existing Legislation

Racially and religiously aggravated offences
These offences are limited to 4 offence groups – assaults, criminal damage, minor public 
order and harassment offences.

Incitement offences
These crimes include the stirring up of hatred on the grounds of race, religion or sexual 
orientation.  In addition, there is a specific offence of ‘racist chanting’ where the Football 
(Offences) Act 1981 makes it an offence to engage or take part in the chanting of an 
indecent or racist nature at a designated football match.

Enhanced sentencing legislation
The enhanced sentencing provisions are contained in Sections 145 and 146 of the Criminal 
Justice Act 2003.  Section 145 requires the courts to consider racial or religious hostility as 
an aggravating factor when deciding on the sentence for any offence (which has not been 
identified as a racially or religiously aggravated offence as outlined above).  Section 146 has 
the same effect for sexual orientation, disability or transgender.

In cases where the prosecution is able to prove that the offender was motivated by hostility 
towards a person’s (actual or perceived) race, religion, sexual orientation, disability or 
transgender identity, the court must treat that fact as an aggravating factor.

The College of Policing’s Hate Crime Operational Guidance: Shared Definitions 
established by the Crown Prosecution Service and the Association of Chief 
Police Officers

Title Definition Included subjects

Hate 
motivation

Hate crimes and incidents are taken to 
mean any crime or incident where the 
perpetrator’s hostility or prejudice 
against an identifiable group of people is 
a factor in determining who is victimised.

This is a broad and inclusive 
definition.  A victim does not 
have to be a member of the 
group.  In fact, anyone could 
be a victims of hate crime.

Hate Incident Any non-crime incident which is 
perceived, by the victim or any other 
person, to be motivated by a hostility or 
prejudice based on a person’s race or 
perceived race or,

Any non-crime incident which is 
perceived, by the victim or any other 
person, to be motivated by a hostility or 
prejudice based on a person’s 
religion or perceived religion or,

Any non-crime incident which is 
perceived, by the victim or any other 
person, to be motivated by a hostility or 
prejudice based on a person’s sexual 
orientation or perceived orientation 
or,

Any racial group or ethnic 
background or national 
origin, including countries 
within the UK and Gypsy 
and Traveller groups.

Any religious group, 
including those who have no 
faith.

Any person’s sexual 
orientation.

Page 16



9

Any non-crime incident which is 
perceived, by the victim or any other 
person, to be motivated by a hostility or 
prejudice based on a person’s 
disability or perceived disability or,

Any non-crime incident which is 
perceived, by the victim or any other 
person, to be motivated by a hostility or 
prejudice against a person who is 
transgender or perceived to be 
transgender.

Any disability including 
physical disability, learning 
disability and mental health.

People who are transsexual, 
transgender, transvestite 
and those who hold a 
gender recognition 
certificate under the Gender 
Recognition Act 2004.

Hate crime A hate crime is any criminal offence 
which is perceived, by the victim or any 
other person, to be motivated by a 
hostility or prejudice based on a 
person’s race or perceived race or,

Any criminal offence which is perceived, 
by the victim or any other person, to be 
motivated by a hostility or prejudice 
based on a person’s religion or 
perceived religion or,

Any criminal offence which is perceived, 
by the victim or any other person, to be 
motivated by a hostility or prejudice 
based on a person’s sexual 
orientation or perceived sexual 
orientation or,

Any criminal offence which is perceived, 
by the victim or any other person, to be 
motivated by a hostility or prejudice 
based on a person’s disability or 
perceived disability or,

Any criminal offence which is perceived, 
by the victim or any other person, to be 
motivated by a hostility or prejudice 
based on a person who is 
transgender or perceived to be 
transgender.

Any racial group or ethnic 
background or national 
origin, including countries 
within the UK and Gypsy 
and Traveller groups.

Any religious group, 
including those who have no 
faith.

Any person’s sexual 
orientation.

Any disability including 
physical disability, learning 
disability and mental health.

People who are transsexual, 
transgender, transvestite 
and those who hold a 
gender recognition 
certificate under the Gender 
Recognition Act 2004.

Hate crime 
prosecution

A hate crime prosecution is any hate crime which has been charged in 
the aggravated form or where the prosecutor has assessed that there is 
sufficient evidence of the hostility element to be put before the court 
when the offender is sentenced. 

Page 17



10

APPENDIX 3

Page 18



11

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification:
Part 1 – Public

Key Decision:
No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee

Date: 13 October 2016

Reporting Officer: Strategic Manager (Community Safety)

Subject: Proposed and New Legislation 

Purpose and summary of the report:
This report provides a brief overview and details of new or planned legislation that may be of 
interest to the Committee’s Members in view of areas of community safety activity that have 
been considered by the Committee at previous meetings or in respect of which details have 
been specifically requested by Committee Members.
 
Recommendations:
Members of the Committee are asked to:

i) Note and comment on the information provided as they wish.

Community Safety Briefing - Proposed and New Legislation

1. Using mobile phones when driving

1.1 It is illegal to ride a motorcycle or drive whilst using hand-held phones or similar 
devices and the rules are the same if one is stopped at traffic lights or queuing in traffic 
or supervising a learner driver or rider.  Currently a fixed penalty notice can be issued 
if a driver is caught using a hand-held phone whilst driving or riding together with 3 
penalty points on their licence and a fine of £100.   In some cases, a driver may have 
to appear at court and be disqualified from driving alongside being given a maximum 
fine of £1,000.  Drivers of buses or goods vehicles could get a maximum fine of £2,500.  
At the moment new drivers can lose their licence if they get 6 or more penalty points 
within 2 years of passing their test.  

1.2 There are exceptions to being able to use a phone in a vehicle – if a driver needs to 
call 999 in an emergency and it’s unsafe or impractical to stop or if they are safely 
parked.  Hands-free phones and 2-way radios can also be used although police do 
have the authority to stop and question a driver if they believe that he is distracted or 
not in control of his vehicle.

1.3 In mid-September 2016, the Department of Transport announced that new regulations, 
expected to come into effect by June 2017, will mean that drivers caught using 
handheld mobile phones in Britain will face much tougher penalties with fines and 
points possibly doubling.  Key changes include that:

 Offending drivers will get 6 points on their licence and face a £200 fine;

Page 21 Agenda Item 6



 Newly qualified drivers could be made to retake their test as a sanction the first 
time they are caught;

 More experienced drivers may be required to appear in court if they offend 
twice and face possible fines of up to £1,000 and a driving ban of at least 6 
months.

1.4 The increase in penalties will be accompanied by a high-profile Government Think! 
Campaign.  The intention is to raise awareness and educate to change behaviour as 
has been effective in respect of the wearing of seat-belts or making drink driving 
unacceptable.

1.5 A survey conducted by the RAC has found that nearly a third of UK motorists claim to 
text, make calls and use apps whilst driving.  Of the 1,700 people questioned, 14% 
said that they had taken photos and recorded films whilst driving.  The RAC also state 
that incidence of drivers using handheld devices whilst at the wheel has risen 
significantly over recent years.  Department for Transport figures indicate that a driver 
impaired or distracted by their phone was a contributory factor in 492 accidents in 
Britain in 2014 including 21 that were fatal and 84 classed as serious.

1.6 One concern being raised is how the new regulations will be enforced as cameras will 
not usually capture a driver using a phone and there are fewer dedicated traffic police 
officers to detect offenders. 

2.Psychoactive Substances Act 2016

2.1 The Psychoactive Substances Act 2016 (the Act) came into force in May 2016.  The 
Act does not replace the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971 or the Human Medicines 
Regulations 2012.  In brief, offences under the Act are:

 Producing (s. 4);
 Supplying or offering to supply (s.5) with aggravation of an offence under s.5 

e.g. if the supply is in the vicinity of a school, couriers are used under 18 years 
of age to commit an offence or the offence occurs in a custodial institution;

 Possession with intent to supply (s.7);
 Importing or exporting (s.8);
 Possession in a custodial institution (s.9).

2.2 Simple possession is not an offence (other than under s.9 of the Act).

2.3 A psychoactive substance is any substance capable of producing a psychoactive 
effect in the person who consumes it and it is not an exempted substance.

2.4 ‘Psychoactive substance’ is an umbrella terms for products that are intended to mimic 
the effects of controlled drugs. However, substances presented as ‘legal highs’ often 
contain controlled drugs.  

Page 22



2.5 The new Act is an attempt to control legal highs and substances that have been used 
as intoxicants for many years.  These substances create a psychoactive effect by 
stimulating or depressing the person’s central nervous system, affecting their mental 
functioning or emotional state (s.2 (2)).  Exempted substances are:

 Controlled drugs;
 Medicinal products;
 Nicotine and tobacco products;
 Alcohol;
 Caffeine;
 Food (including drink).

2.6 To commit an offence under sections 4, 5, 7 8 and 9, the offending behaviour must be 
intentional.  Under sections 4, 7 and 9, the defendant must have known or suspected 
or ought to have known or suspected that the substance was a psychoactive one.  
Under sections 5 and 8 the defendant must only have known or suspected.

2.7 Under sections 4, 5 and 8 the defendant must know or be reckless as to whether the 
psychoactive substance is likely to be consumed by another person for its 
psychoactive effects.

2.8 For a s.7 offence, there must be an intention to supply for consumption for its 
psychoactive effects and for a s.9 offence, an intention to consume the substance for 
its psychoactive effects is required.

Kath Donald
Strategic Manager (Community Safety Unit)
29 September 2016

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



1

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

KENT AND MEDWAY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

MINUTES of a meeting of the Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel held in the 
Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Tuesday, 14 June 
2016.

PRESENT: Mr P M Hill, OBE (Chairman), Mr Gurvinder Sandher (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr P Clokie, Cllr M Dearden, Cllr M Franklin, Cllr P Fleming, Cllr A Horton, 
Cllr K Morris, Cllr Sloan, Cllr P Todd, Cllr Chris Wells (Substitute for Mr T L Shonk), 
Cllr F Wilson, Mr R A Latchford, OBE, Cllr H Tejan, Dr M R Eddy and Mrs E Bolton

ALSO PRESENT: Mr M Scott (Kent Police and Crime Commissioner), Mr A Harper 
(PCC's Chief of Staff) and Mr S Nolan (Chief Finance Officer)

IN ATTENDANCE: Mr M Campbell (Policy Officer) and Mrs A Taylor (Scrutiny 
Research Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

174. Election of Chairman 
(Item 2)

1.  The Scrutiny Research Officer (KCC) asked for nominations for Chairman of the 
Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel.  

2.  Cllr P Clokie proposed and Cllr R Latchford seconded that Mr M Hill be elected 
Chairman.  No other nominations were received.

RESOLVED that Mr M Hill be elected Chairman of the Kent and Medway Police and 
Crime Panel.  

175. Election of Vice-Chairman 
(Item 3)

1.  The Chairman proposed that Mr Sandher be elected Vice-Chairman of the Kent 
and Medway Police and Crime Panel.  This was seconded by Mrs Bolton and no 
other nominations were received.  

RESOLVED that Mr Sandher be elected Vice-Chairman of the Kent and Medway 
Police and Crime Panel.

176. Minutes of the Police and Crime Panel held on 12 April 2016 
(Item 6)

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 12 April be signed by the 
Chairman as an accurate record.

177. Appointment of Independent Co-opted Members 
(Item 7)

Page 25 Agenda Item 7



2

1. Mrs Bolton and Mr Sandher left the Council Chamber whilst this item was 
discussed.  

2. The Chairman introduced the officers’ report and the Panel approved the Terms of 
Reference as amended and contained within the report. In relation to the 
Independent Members the Panel had the option to re-appoint the current 
Independent Members, or advertise and recruit externally. The Panel also had to 
decide the length of term to appoint the Independent Members for.  

3. The Chairman said he supported the re-appointment of the two Independent 
Members; his view was that they had given a good service to the Panel, were 
committed and it was important to the Panel to have strong Independent Members.  
The Chairman’s view was that they should be appointed to serve a four year term.  

4. A Member asked whether there were any concerns given that one of the 
Independent Members was a candidate in the Police and Crime Commissioner 
election. It was confirmed that this did not cause a difficulty for any Members of the 
Panel. The Commissioner also confirmed that he supported Mr Sandher remaining 
as an Independent Member of the Panel.  

5. One Member commented that she was content for the two Independent Members 
to be re-appointed, but that when their terms come to an end an external recruitment 
process should take place. In relation to their terms of office a Member considered it 
preferable to stagger them so that both Independent Members did not come to the 
end of their term at the same time. 

6. Mr Campbell confirmed that the amended Terms of Reference, which had just 
been approved by the Panel, stated that no Independent Member would serve more 
than two successive terms. In response to the point about staggering the terms of 
office the cost of the recruitment process was raised and it was pointed out that it 
was more cost effective to recruit both Independent Members at the same time, 
rather than hold staggered interviews every other year.  

7. One Member asked for confirmation about the terms of office of the Independent 
Members. Would they be allowed to serve two terms from their re-appointment in 
2016, or would their previous membership of the Panel be taken into account? It was 
confirmed that the intention was to re-appoint the Independent Members for a further 
four years from November and hold an external recruitment process in November 
2020.  

8. One Member commented that the advertising process should begin well in 
advance of the end of their term. 

RESOLVED that:

- The Panel agree the proposed revision to its Terms of Reference in relation the 
appointment of Independent Members.

- The Panel agree to re-appoint Mrs Bolton and Mr Sandher as Independent 
Members of the Panel in November 2016 for a further full four year term.

Page 26



3

178. Confirmation Hearing - Commissioner's Chief of Staff 
(Item 8)

1. The Commissioner introduced his report and explained that he wished to extend 
the appointment of his current Chief of Staff for a further two years until September 
2018, rather than undertake a full recruitment process at this time. The 
Commissioner explained that as his Chief Finance Officer would be leaving the Office 
shortly he wished to maintain resilience and continuity amongst his statutory officers. 
The Commissioner stated that Mr Harper had been a great help since taking up office 
and had provided good advice to Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) candidates 
during the election, approaching it in a positive manner. The Commissioner continued 
by saying that Mr Harper had proved to be an effective manager who could deliver on 
commitments, meet deadlines and that he was content Mr Harper was best placed to 
help deliver his Six Point Plan and manifesto promises.  

2. The Commissioner thanked Mr Harper for his work to date and said that he hoped 
the Panel would support the extension of Mr Harper’s appointment for a further two 
years.
 
3. A Member asked why the extension to Mr Harper’s contract was for two years 
rather than the full four years of the PCC’s term. The Commissioner explained that as 
he had inherited his team he felt it was important to deliver a period of continuity and 
stability and it was therefore preferable to re-appoint Mr Harper for a further two 
years before running a full competitive process at that point. A four year extension 
would not allow the opportunity to conduct a full, transparent recruitment process 
during the Commissioner’s term of office.   

4. Another Member spoke about flexibility within the workforce and asked whether a 
one year extension would give more flexibility to the office, and also what 
performance and development review processes were in place. The Commissioner 
explained that a two year extension allowed him to work towards a medium-long term 
plan for the Office which a one year extension would not. It also provided more 
stability during the first half of his term in office. There would be regular performance 
management appraisals with performance goals, and the Commissioner offered to 
discuss further with the Member if appropriate. 

RESOLVED that the Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel concluded that the 
Commissioner had given sound reasons both for extending the appointment of Mr 
Harper and for choosing a two year extension. The Panel unanimously 
recommended the extension of Mr Adrian Harper’s appointment for a further two 
years, until 30 September 2018. The Panel agreed that the formal report on the 
confirmation hearing be drafted by the officers to the Panel and approved by the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman.  

179. Introduction to the Commissioner (verbal report) 
(Item 9)

1. The Chairman welcomed the Commissioner into his new role and said that he 
looked forward to a period of co-operation between the Panel and the Commissioner.  

2. The Commissioner congratulated the Chairman and Vice Chairman on their re-
election to those positions and said that he felt the Vice-Chairman, as a Police and 

Page 27



4

Crime Commissioner candidate, had run a principled and positive election campaign 
and he looked forward to working with the Chairman, Vice-Chairman and Panel 
Members in the future. 

3. The Commissioner thanked his Office for the support he had received since his 
election in May and also thanked Mr Nolan, who he explained was leaving the 
Commissioner’s Office later in the year. 

4. The Commissioner said he came from a policing family and so had an 
understanding of the culture and processes within the police. The Commissioner had 
experience in supporting victims of crime and had also been a school governor and 
served as a councillor. The Commissioner outlined his Six Point Plan stating that he 
wants to cut crime and reduce re-offending, is committed to visible policing, wants to 
ensure value for money, through collaboration and better use of technology, and try 
to do more to support victims of crime. The Commissioner also said that he wanted to 
tackle the misery caused by anti-social behaviour, domestic abuse and violence and 
will particularly focus on mental health, reducing police time spent dealing with cases 
involving mental health by helping vulnerable people access the right support, 
providing officers and staff with appropriate training, but also ensuring officers and 
staff have access to the support they might need.  

5. In terms of support already given, the Commissioner confirmed that at least 50 
more PCSOs would be recruited to increase numbers back up to over 300. Mobile 
policing would focus on mobile devices to support officers working remotely and 
keeping them on the street for longer; funding had been approved for Community 
Safety Partnerships (CSPs); and also £450,000 approved for specialist victims 
services. In addition, extra funding had been provided to the Force to tackle the 
backlog of firearms licences. The Commissioner had also taken a salary reduction 
and was giving the money to two local charities – the details of which, for 
transparency purposes, were available on the Commissioner’s website. The 
Commissioner said he was trying his best to get out and about, and on his first day 
he visited the Bluewater Safety Store which he considered an excellent resource and 
expressed his thanks to Bluewater for their support. The Commissioner is meeting 
local MPs and also with all Council Leaders. The Commissioner had visited the 
Domestic Abuse Victim Support Service (DAVSS), a charity supporting male victims 
of domestic abuse and also met with community groups such as 20’s Plenty for Us. 
The Commissioner said that he looked forward to working with all Panel Members 
and offered to meet with any Member to discuss issues within their district.  

6. A Member referred to visible policing. He said that in his area the police station 
was open for a couple of hours a day, and if a member of the public was arrested 
after the station was closed the individual would have to be taken to an alternative 
police station in a neighbouring town therefore removing policing resources from the 
streets. The Member asked how visible policing would be promoted with such 
constraints. The Commissioner understood the concern, and explained that he would 
be focussing on reducing the burden on police officers such as the time spent dealing 
with cases involving mental health. A pilot scheme involving counsellors from MIND 
was currently underway to support vulnerable people and this, combined with 
continued work with charities, would hopefully reduce the burden on police officers. 
Increased use of mobile technology and tablets would also reduce the time spent by 
officers travelling back and forth to an office to complete paperwork which could be 
completed remotely. The Commissioner confirmed that he would look into the 

Page 28



5

specific example, but there were a number of ways in which he aimed to free up 
officer time to make them more visible within communities.  

7. Referring to firearms licences, and the gap between the cost and what was 
charged the Commissioner was asked for his view. The Commissioner explained that 
the cost of the licence was set nationally, full cost recovery was ideal but until that 
was possible it was necessary to effectively and efficiently manage the service. When 
more could do done online it was hoped that costs would reduce. The service did 
have to be properly resourced to ensure sufficient checks were undertaken and the 
processes robust. The Commissioner said that he hoped the overall cost could be 
addressed in the future.

8. Referring to CSPs, a Member asked for confirmation of their funding. The 
Commissioner explained that when he took up office he had a decision to make to 
approve the allocations made by his predecessor which were effectively a cash 
freeze on the previous year. In future he would ensure that CSPs had more 
sustainability in funding to support the development of two or three year plans.  

9. The Chairman referred to the Commissioner’s comments on mental health, and 
said that any partnership working on the issue would be welcomed. The Chairman 
also said that he chairs Domestic Homicide Reviews which had increased and nearly 
all the tragedies involved background issues of mental health. The Commissioner 
was pleased to have been invited to a KCC event on the future plans for mental 
health commissioning and children’s emotional wellbeing. 

10. The Vice-Chairman asked when the review of mental health and policing would 
begin and who would be involved. The Commissioner said that Terms of Reference 
were currently being drafted and it was hoped that KCC, charities and the NHS would 
be involved to look at the impact on policing and that he would welcome an input 
from any Member of the Panel.  

11. Referring to the 20’s Plenty for Us campaign a Member explained that one of the 
difficulties with this excellent project was that it was a joint piece of work between the 
Highways Authority and the police. The Member asked whether the Commissioner 
was looking to work with KCC through their Joint Transportation Boards to take 
forward 20’s Plenty, how was this to be funded and would the police be enforcing 20 
MPH speed limits. The Commissioner confirmed that he had met with 20’s Plenty for 
Us the previous evening, and had asked the Force a range of questions about how 
20 MPH speed limits are enforced, but considered that they do provide benefits, 
particularly around schools. The Commissioner said that if there were areas where 
Members/residents did not see the speed limit being enforced, he and his staff would 
look into it. The Member asked that the Panel have sight of the responses to the 
Commissioner’s questions about 20’s Plenty at a future meeting.

12. A Member raised a question about the challenges associated with illegal 
migration, the Commissioner confirmed that he was aware of the problems faced by 
Kent as the gateway to Europe and had already held discussions with relevant 
agencies. There was a need to be conscious of the responsible authority and the role 
of Kent Police.  

13. A Member asked about CCTV in the county. He said that the Home Office had 
encouraged districts to install CCTV and this was now very costly to maintain, was 

Page 29



6

there any potential for the Commissioner to consider funding CCTV. The 
Commissioner said he was a strong supporter of CCTV; it could be used to deter and 
prevent crime and was an important tool for evidence gathering. In future the 
Commissioner said he would be reviewing all the funding that is available and he 
would be happy to receive any representations.  

14. A Member asked how the Commissioner would hold the Chief Constable to 
account regarding reducing offending in prisons. The Commissioner explained that 
collaborative work would be undertaken with the prison service to ensure that the 
issues were being addressed. The Commissioner said that he has already met with 
the Prison Officers Association to discuss their concerns about drugs in prisons and 
attacks on staff, and he would be continuing to visit prisons in Kent and working 
closely with relevant agencies to ensure the issues are addressed. The 
Commissioner said he would take the issues up with the Chief Constable.  

RESOLVED that the Police and Crime Panel note with thanks, the Commissioner’s 
verbal introduction.

180. Mobile Policing Decision 
(Item B1)

1. The Chairman welcomed the new format of the decision documents and thanked 
the Commissioner and his staff for the clear advice and background contained within. 

RESOLVED that the Police and Crime Panel note the Commissioner’s Decision.

181. Schemes of Consent Decision 
(Item B2)

RESOLVED that the Police and Crime Panel note the Commissioner’s Decision.

182. H&S Policy Statement Decision 
(Item B3)

RESOLVED that the Police and Crime Panel note the Commissioner’s Decision.

183. Chief Finance Officer recruitment Decision 
(Item B4)

1. Mr Sandher asked whether a Panel Member would be invited to sit on the 
recruitment panel as an observer. The Commissioner confirmed that he would be 
more than happy to accommodate this.  

RESOLVED that the Police and Crime Panel note the Commissioner’s Decision.

184. Firearms Licensing additional funding Decision 
(Item B5)

1. The Chairman commented that it was disappointing that the fees were not 
sufficient to cover the cost of issuing the firearms licence. The Commissioner 
explained that the cost of a licence had increased and he hoped there would 

Page 30



7

eventually be full cost recovery; however of vital importance was that there was a 
robust service to enable residents to abide by the law.  

RESOLVED that the Police and Crime Panel note the Commissioner’s Decision.

185. Future work programme 
(Item C1)

1. The Chairman asked the Panel whether they wished to retain some of the reports 
on the work programme or start with a ‘clean slate’. One Member wished to remove 
the pending items; however another Member wished to retain the update on 
cybercrime and the item on hate crime. It was considered that there were two vital 
issues from the Commissioner’s introduction to the Panel, one being mental health 
(the scale of the problem) and the other being 20’s Plenty, its feasibility and how 
reasonable the schemes were (the Commissioner confirmed that there were 811 20 
MPH zones in Kent). Members asked how the Panel would receive reports on 
particular issues from the Commissioner’s Plan? Mr Campbell explained that once 
the Commissioner had finalised his Police and Crime Plan a more detailed 
programme would be proposed to the Panel which would include the issues raised by 
Members.  

2. One Member asked for an item on the protection of vulnerable people to review 
how the Commissioner was holding the Chief Constable to account on such topics.  

3. Another Member considered that the Commissioner should take the themes 
suggested by the Panel on board when holding the Chief Constable to account.  

4. One Member asked that the Panel receive an update on the Electoral Commission 
investigation in Thanet at their next meeting. The Commissioner pointed out that it 
was a live on-going investigation and that there would be limits on what he could say. 
Members queried the timescale of the investigation. The Commissioner said he 
would report to the Panel information that was publically available at the September 
meeting. Another Member was uncomfortable with the request as he regarded it as 
an operational policing matter and outside the role of the Panel and the 
Commissioner.  

5. In response to a question the Commissioner confirmed that he would be retaining 
the Governance Board for the time being to ensure public scrutiny of the Chief 
Constable, the other Committees would be looked at on an individual basis. It was 
hoped that there would be more public engagement on a thematic basis in future. 
The Commissioner was asked for his view on inviting the Chief Constable to Panel 
meetings. The Commissioner said he had discussed this with the Chair, but his 
concern was that Panel meetings would then focus on operational policing matters. 
The Commissioner said that he was happy to engage in further discussion to find a 
way of supporting the Panel’s request in the future.

RESOLVED that the Panel ask its officers, in consultation with the PCC’s officers to 
propose a new work programme taking into account the views expressed by Panel 
Members.

Page 31



8

186. Minutes of the Commissioner's Governance Board meeting held on 5th 
April 2016 
(Item D1)

RESOLVED that the Police and Crime Panel note the Commissioner’s Governance 
Board minutes. 

The Chairman concluded the meeting by thanking Mr Nolan, the Commissioner’s 
Chief Finance Officer, for his service to the Commissioner, the previous 
Commissioner and to the Panel. Members were grateful and wished him the very 
best in his new appointment.  

Mr Nolan thanked the Chairman, and said that he had enjoyed the previous 4 years 
and he was moving to a national role with CIPFA. Mr Nolan felt that finance had 
always been taken seriously by the Panel and wished the Panel every success for 
the future.    

Page 32


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Responding to Hate Crime
	6 Legislative Update
	7 Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel Update

